
 

 

 

 
 

A G E N D A 
 
 

PLANNING AND TRANSPORTATION CABINET ADVISORY 
BOARD 

 
Monday 11 November 2019 at 6.30 pm 

Committee Room A, Town Hall, Royal Tunbridge Wells, TN1 1RS 
 
 

 

Members:  Councillor McDermott (Chairman), Councillors Bland (Vice-Chairman), Backhouse, 
Hamilton, Lewis, Lidstone, Neve, Mrs Soyke, Stanyer and Willis 

Quorum:  3 Members 

 
 

1   Chairman's Introduction 
Announcement on procedural matters. 

(Pages 5 - 6) 

2   Apologies 
The receive any apologies for absence. 

(Pages 7 - 8) 

3   Declarations of Interests 
To receive any declarations of interest by members of the Council 
in items on the agenda. For any advice on declarations of interest, 
please contact the Monitoring Officer before the meeting. 

(Pages 9 - 10) 

4   Notification of Visiting Members Wishing to Speak 
To note any members of the Council wishing to speak, of which 
due notice has been given in accordance with Council Meeting 
Procedure Rule 18, and which items they wish to speak on. 

(Pages 11 - 12) 

5   Minutes of the meeting dated 19 August 2019 
To approve the minutes of a previous meeting as a correct record. 
The only issue relating to the minutes that can be discussed is 
their accuracy. 

(Pages 13 - 14) 

6   Work Programme as at 31 October 2019 (Pages 15 - 18) 

7   Leigh Flood Storage Area Expansion - Consultation on 
amendment to the River Medway (Flood Relief Act) 1976 

(Pages 19 - 30) 

Public Document Pack

Page 1



 
 

 

8   Urgent Business 
To consider any other items which the Chairman decides are 
urgent, for the reasons to be stated, in accordance with Section 
100B(4) of the Local Government Act 1972. 

(Pages 31 - 32) 

9   Date of the Next Meeting 
To note that the date of the next scheduled meeting is 13 January 
2020, at 6.30pm in Committee Room A, Town Hall, Tunbridge 
Wells. 

(Pages 33 - 34) 

 

 
 
Cheryl Clark Town Hall 
Democratic Services Officer ROYAL TUNBRIDGE WELLS 
Tel:      (01892) 554413 Kent   TN1 1RS 
Email:  Cheryl.Clark@TunbridgeWells.gov.uk  
 

 

mod.gov app – go paperless 
 

Easily download, annotate and keep all committee paperwork on your 

mobile device using the mod.gov app – all for free!. 
 

Visit   www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/modgovapp   for details.  

Page 2

http://www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/modgovapp
http://www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/modgovapp
http://www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/modgovapp


 
 

 

 

 
 
Options that the Cabinet Advisory Board Can Consider 
 
The Cabinet Advisory Board is asked to consider each report and in each case come to a 
consensus and advise the Cabinet which one of the three options identified below it 
supports:  
 

1) The Cabinet Advisory Board supports the recommendation(s) in the report.  
 
or 
 
2) The Cabinet Advisory Board supports the recommendation(s) subject to the 

issues it has identified being taken into account by the Cabinet (any issues 
identified should be stated and recorded). 

 
or 
 
3) The Cabinet Advisory Board does not support the recommendation(s) on at 

least one of the following grounds 
 

3.1 Inadequate consultation with stakeholders; and/or 
3.2 Inadequate evidence on which to base the decision; and/or 
3.3 Insufficient consideration of legal and financial information; and/or 
3.4 Another reason, as decided by the meeting of the Cabinet Advisory 

Board. 
 

In each case the final Cabinet report will be amended to outline the option selected by the 
Cabinet Advisory Board and explain why this option was selected.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 3



 
 

 
All visitors wishing to attend a public meeting at the Town Hall between the hours of 9.00am 
and 5.00pm should report to reception via the side entrance in Monson Way.  After 5pm, 
access will be via the front door on the corner of Crescent Road and Mount Pleasant Road, 
except for disabled access which will continue by use of an 'out of hours' button at the entrance 
in Monson Way 
 
Notes on Procedure 
 
(1)  A list of background papers appears at the end of each report, where appropriate, 

pursuant to the Local Government Act 1972, section 100D(i). 
 
(2) Items marked * will be the subject of recommendations by Cabinet to full Council; in the 

case of other items, Cabinet may make the decision, subject to call-in (Overview and 
Scrutiny Procedure Rule 12). 

 
(3) Members seeking factual information about agenda items are requested to contact the 

appropriate Service Manager prior to the meeting. 
 
(4) Members of the public and other stakeholders are required to register with the Democratic 

Services Officer if they wish to speak on an agenda item at a meeting.  Places are limited 
to a maximum of four speakers per item.  The deadline for registering to speak is 4.00 pm 
the last working day before the meeting.  Each speaker will be given a maximum of 3 
minutes to address the Committee. 

 
(5) All meetings are open to the public except where confidential or exempt information is 

being discussed. The agenda will identify whether any meeting or part of a meeting is not 
open to the public. Meeting rooms have a maximum public capacity as follows: 

 Council Chamber: 100, Committee Room A: 20, Committee Room B: 10. 
 
(6) Please note that the public proceedings of this meeting will be recorded and made 

available for playback on the Tunbridge Wells Borough Council website. Any other third 
party may also record or film meetings, unless exempt or confidential information is being 
considered, but are requested as a courtesy to others to give notice of this to the 
Democratic Services Officer before the meeting. The Council is not liable for any third 
party recordings. 

 
Further details are available on the website (www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk) or from 
Democratic Services. 

 

If you require this information in another format, 
please contact us, call 01892 526121 or email 

committee@tunbridgewells.gov.uk 
 

Accessibility into and within the Town Hall – There is a wheelchair accessible lift 
by the main staircase, giving access to the first floor where the committee rooms are 
situated.  There are a few steps leading to the Council Chamber itself but there is a 
platform chairlift in the foyer. 
 

Hearing Loop System – The Council Chamber and Committee Rooms A and B 
have been equipped with hearing induction loop systems. The Council Chamber also 
has a fully equipped audio-visual system. 

 

Page 4

http://www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/
mailto:committee@tunbridgewells.gov.uk


 

Planning and Transportation 
Cabinet Advisory Board 

11 November 2019 

 

Chairman’s Introduction 
 

Procedural Item: 
 

Announcement on procedural matters. 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 1



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Planning and Transportation 
Cabinet Advisory Board 

11 November 2019 

 

Apologies for Absence 
 

Procedural Item: 
 

To receive any apologies for absence. 

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 2



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Planning and Transportation 
Cabinet Advisory Board  

11 November 2019 

 

Declarations of Interest 
 

Procedural Item: 
 

To receive any declarations of interest by members in items on the agenda. For any 
advice on declarations of interest; please contact the Monitoring Officer before the 
meeting. 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Planning and Transportation 
Cabinet Advisory Board 

11 November 2019 

 

Notification of Visiting Members wishing to 
speak 

 

Procedural Item: 
 

To note any members of the Council wishing to speak, of which due notice has been 
given in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 18, and which item(s) they wish to 
speak on. 

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

PLANNING AND TRANSPORTATION CABINET ADVISORY BOARD 
 

Monday, 19 August 2019 
 

Present: Councillor McDermott (Chairman) 
Councillors Backhouse, Dr Basu, Hamilton, Lewis, Lidstone, Neve, Mrs Soyke, 

Stanyer and Willis 
 

Officers in Attendance: Cheryl Clark (Democratic Services Officer) and David Scully 
(Landscape and Biodiversity Officer) 
 
Other Members in Attendance: Councillor Ellis   
 
CHAIRMAN'S INTRODUCTION 
 
PT19/19 
 

The Chairman opened the meeting and outlined procedural matters of the 
meeting. 
 

APOLOGIES 
 
PT20/19 
 

Subsequent to the meeting, it was ascertained that apologies had been sent 
to the Chairman by Councillor Bland. 
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS 
 
PT21/19 
 

No declarations of interest were made. 
 

NOTIFICATION OF VISITING MEMBERS WISHING TO SPEAK 
 
PT22/19 
 

There were no Visiting Members who had registered to speak at the meeting. 
 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING DATED 5 AUGUST 2019 
 
PT23/19 
 

Members had the opportunity to review the minutes. 
 
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting dated 5 August  2019 be 
approved as a correct record. 
 

WORK PROGRAMME AS AT 24 JULY 2019 
 
PT24/19 
 

The Chairman advised that the Forward Plan had been re-published on 14 
August 2019.  He also advised that Councillor Lidstone had identified that the 
consultation period relating to the Cabinet Decision on 15 August had been 
incorrectly shown and should have read September/October.  The Chairman 
confirmed that the decision on 15 August was however made on the correct 
basis. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Work Programme be noted on the amended basis. 
 

NET GAIN FOR BIODIVERSITY IN THE BOROUGH 
 
PT25/19 
 

Mr David Scully, Landscape and Biodiversity Officer, introduced and 
summarised the contents of the report.  Members of the Committee had the 
opportunity to ask questions and discussed matters including: 

 Interim measures and longer term policy; 

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



 

 
 

 The government provided DEFRA Biodiversity Metric; 

 Resources to monitor and oversee the Council’s proposed policy including 
use of consultants; 

 Application of conditions to planning permission; 

 Risks that offsets would not reflect the true impact of a loss; 

 Control or restriction of pesticides not being within the remit of planning 
conditions; 

 Definitions of native species; and  

 Engagement of key partners and stakeholders such as the Kent High 
Weald Partnership, Kent Wildlife Trust and the Woodland Trust. 
 

The Chairman thanked Mr Scully for providing such an informative report and 
for the provision of further member presentations in the future.  The options 
for reporting the Advisory Board’s recommendations were referred to on page 
3 and the officer recommendations to Cabinet on page 17 of the agenda 
report.   
 
RESOLVED –  
 
That the Cabinet Advisory Board support the recommendations in the report. 
 
 

URGENT BUSINESS 
 
PT26/19 
 

There was no urgent business for consideration. 
 
 

DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING 
 
PT27/19 
 

RESOLVED – That the next meeting take place on 30 September 2019, at 
6.30pm, 
 

 
 NOTES: 

1. An audio recording of the full proceedings of this meeting is available on 
the relevant Cabinet Advisory Board page of the Tunbridge Wells 
Borough Council website. 

2. The meeting concluded at 7.10 pm. 
 

Page 14

Agenda Item 5



 

 

 TUNBRIDGE WELLS BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

 

 

FORWARD PLAN 
 

www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/forwardplan 

 
 

Notice of Key Decisions / Notice of Private Meetings 
Pursuant to the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012 

 
 

This Plan gives at least 28 days notice if the Cabinet of Tunbridge Wells Borough Council intends to make a key decision1 or 
make a decision in private2. Other decisions by the executive are also included on the Plan wherever possible. 
 
Relevant documents can be downloaded from the Council’s website or are available on request from: Democratic Services, 
Town Hall, Royal Tunbridge Wells, TN1 1RS or committee@tunbridgewells.gov.uk. Documents may be submitted to the 
decision maker via Democratic Services. 
 
If it is necessary to hold a meeting in private, the reasons for this are stated alongside the decision. These reasons are 
prescribed by Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) and summarised at the back of this Plan. 
 
Representations against the intention to make a decision in private can be submitted in writing to Democratic Services no less 
than ten working days before the meeting date. 
 
If the Council is unable to give 28 days notice, it will publish the reasons for this on its website and at its offices. 
 
 

 

 

Councillor Alan McDermott 
Leader of the Council 

Publication Date:  31 October 2019 
The most recent version of the Plan supersedes all previously issued versions 

Guidance notes are provided at the back of this document 

P
age 15

A
genda Item

 6

http://www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/forwardplan
mailto:committee@tunbridgewells.gov.uk


 

 

 
 

Councillor Alan McDermott 
Leader of the Council 

 

 Planning Policy 

 Development Management 

 Heritage and Conservation 

 Planning Enforcement 

 Land Charges 

 Building Control 

 Parking (on and off-street) 

 Transportation 
 

 
 

Councillor Jane March 
Culture, Leisure and 

Economic Development 
 

 Culture, Leisure and the Arts 

 Economic Development and Tourism 

 Assembly Hall Theatre 

 Museum and Art Gallery 

 Events (including Ice Rink) 

 Parks and Grounds Maintenance 

 Sports and Leisure Centres 

 Community Grants 

 Customer Access and Gateway 

 Cemeteries and Crematorium 

 Business Engagement 
 

 

Members of the Cabinet and their respective portfolios 
 

 
 

Councillor Tom Dawlings 
Finance and Governance 

 

 Finance 

 Operational Partnerships (including Mid 
Kent Services) 

 Revenues and Benefits 

 Fraud and Debt Recovery 

 Internal Audit 

 Legal Services 

 ICT / Digital Transformation / Cyber 
Security 

 Project and Programme Management 

 Performance Management 

 Data Protection 

 Democratic Services 

 Human Resources (including Learning 
and Development) 

 

 
 

Councillor David Scott 
Property, Major Projects and 

Strategic Engagement 
 

 Major Projects 

 Property and Estates 

 Facilities 

 Communications 

 Strategic Policy and Engagement 
 

 
 

 

 
 

Councillor Carol Mackonochie 
Communities and Wellbeing 

 

 Housing (including Private Sector and 
Housing Needs) 

 Health 

 Community Centres and Hubs 

 TN2 and The Camden Centre 

 Community Partnerships 

 Assets of Community Value 

 Community Safety and CCTV 

 Rural Communities 

 Younger and Older People 

 Equalities and Equal Access 
 

 
 

Councillor Matthew Bailey 
Sustainability 

 

 Recycling and Waste Collection 

 Street Cleansing and Littering 

 Fly Tipping and Abandoned Vehicles 

 Environmental Protection 

 Environmental Health 

 Food Hygiene and Health & Safety 
Standards in businesses 

 Corporate Health and Safety 

 Licensing 

 Sustainability 

 Drainage and Flooding 
 

 

P
age 16

A
genda Item

 6



3 

 

 

Leader of the Council – Councillor McDermott 

 

Date of decision/ 
Decision maker 

Full Council Advisory 
Board 

Report Title, Summary and Ward Consultation Details Relevant Officer Key?
1
 Private?

2
 

05/12/19 
Cabinet 

 11/11/19  
Planning and 
Transportation 
Cabinet 
Advisory Board  

Leigh Expansion and Hildenborough 
embankment scheme - Consultation on an 
amendment to the River Medway (Flood 
Relief) Act 1976 
This report provides Members with information 
on a consultation being undertaken by the 
Environment Agency on an amendment to the 
River Medway (Flood Relief) Act 1976 that is 
required in order to deliver the Leigh 
Expansion and Hildenborough Embankment 
Scheme. The scheme affects a small area of 
land within Tunbridge Wells Borough, within 
the parish of Bidborough. It is recommended 
that the amendments are supported in light of 
the benefits that the scheme will deliver to 
residents and businesses in Tonbridge and 
Hildenborough. 
(Speldhurst & Bidborough) 

The relevant Cabinet 
Advisory Board will be 
consulted. 
 

Sharon Evans, 
Principal Planning 
Policy Officer 

No Open 

06/02/20 
Cabinet 

 13/01/20  
Planning and 
Transportation 
Cabinet 
Advisory Board  

Revised JTB Agreement 
To consider a proposed revised JTB 
agreement governing the Joint Transportation 
Board. 
(All Wards) 

JTB on 15 April 2019 
and 14 October 2019. 
The relevant Cabinet 
Advisory Board will be 
consulted. 
 

Mark O'Callaghan, 
Scrutiny and 
Engagement Officer 

No Open 

 

P
age 17

A
genda Item

 6



4 

 

 

  
Guidance Notes 

Note 1: KEY DECISIONS 
 
A “key decision” means a decision which is to be taken by the executive of the Council which is likely to: 

(a) result in the Council incurring expenditure which is, or the making of savings which are over £250,000 as well as otherwise being significant having 
regard to the Council’s budget for the service or function to which the decision relates; or 

 (b) be significant in terms of its effects on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards in the Borough of Tunbridge Wells. 

 
Note 2: REASONS A MEETING MAY BE HELD IN PRIVATE 
 
In accordance with section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended), the public may be excluded from a meeting on the grounds that it may involve 
the disclosure of exempt information as defined in Schedule 12A of the Act. The exemption must be by virtue of one or more specified paragraphs which are shown on 
the meeting agenda (giving 5 days notice) and, in the case of the Cabinet, on the Forward Plan (giving 28 days notice). The exemptions are summarised as follows: 
 
Paragraph (1) - Information relating to any individual. 
 
Paragraph (2) - Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual. 
 
Paragraph (3) - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any  
  particular person (including the authority holding that information). 
 
Paragraph (4) - Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or  
  contemplated consultations or negotiations, in connection with  
  any labour relations matter arising between the authority or a  
  Minister of the Crown and employees of, or office-holders under,  
  the authority. 
 
Paragraph (5) - Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional  
  privilege could be maintained in legal proceedings. 
 
Paragraph (6) - Information which reveals that the authority proposes – 
     (a) to give under any enactment a notice under or by  
   virtue of which requirements are imposed on a person; or 
     (b) to make an order or direction under any enactment. 
 
Paragraph (7) - Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in   
  connection with the prevention, investigation or prosecution of  
  crime. 

 QUALIFICATIONS: 
 
(8) Information falling within paragraph (3) above is not exempt information by 
 virtue of that paragraph if it is required to be registered under –  
    (a) the Companies Act 1985; 
    (b) the Friendly Societies Act 1974; 
    (c) the Friendly Societies Act 1992; 
    (d) the Industrial and Provident Societies Acts 1965 to 1978; 
    (e) the Building Societies Act 1986; or 
    (f) the Charities Act 1993. 
 
(9) Information is not exempt information if it relates to proposed development 
 for which the local planning authority may grant itself planning permission 
 pursuant to regulation 3 of the Town and Country Planning General 
 Regulations 1992. 
 
(10) Information which –  
    (a) falls within any of paragraphs 1 to 7 above; and 
    (b) is not prevented from being exempt by virtue of paragraph  
  8 or 9 above, 
 is exempt information if and so long as, in all the circumstances of 
 the case, the public interest in maintaining the exemption 
 outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information. 

P
age 18

A
genda Item

 6



 

Planning and 
Transportation Cabinet 
Advisory Board 

11 November 2019 

Is the final decision on the recommendations in this report to be made at this meeting? No 

 

Leigh Flood Storage Area Expansion – 
Consultation on amendment to the River Medway 
(Flood Relief Act) 1976  

 

Final Decision-Maker Cabinet 

Portfolio Holder(s)  Councillor Alan McDermott – Portfolio Holder for Planning and 
Transportation 

Lead Director  Lee Colyer – Director of Finance Policy and Development  

Head of Service Stephen Baughen – Head of Planning 

Lead Officer/Author Sharon Evans – Principal Planning Policy Officer 

Classification Non-exempt 

Wards affected Speldhurst & Bidborough 

  

This report makes the following recommendations to the final decision-maker: 

1. That the content of the report be noted; and 

2. Subject to any comments that the Advisory Board wish to make, that the proposed 
amendments set out by the Environment Agency in section 2 of this report be 
supported. 

  

Explain how this report relates to the Corporate Priorities in the Five Year Plan: 

The Planning Policy Team within the Council work collaboratively with the Environment 
Agency on the impact of any future development proposals and any impacts that they 
might have on the Council’s corporate priorities.  Working jointly with neighbouring 
authorities is also a legal requirement under the ‘Duty to Cooperate’ mechanism found 
within the Localism Act 2011. 

 

There are no specific impacts of the proposals on the Corporate Priorities in the 
Council’s Five Year Plan. 

 

  

Timetable  

Meeting Date 

Agreed for publication by Portfolio Holder 1 November 2019 

Agreed for publication by Head of Service 1 November 2019 

Page 19

Agenda Item 7



 

Management Board 23 October 2019 

Cabinet Advisory Board 11 November 2019 

Cabinet 5 December 2019 

Council N/A 

Other committee(s) N/A 
Tunbridge Wells Committee Report, version: March 2019 

Page 20

Agenda Item 7



 

Leigh Flood Storage Area Expansion – 
Consultation on amendment to the River Medway 
(Flood Relief Act) 1976 

 

 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1. This report provides Members with information on a consultation being 

undertaken by the Environment Agency on a proposed change to the stored 
water level in the Leigh Flood Storage Area which is governed by the River 
Medway (Flood Relief) Act 1976.  This will increase the capacity of the storage 
area in order to reduce flood risk to residents and businesses in Tonbridge and 
Hildenborough.   
 

2. The scheme affects a small area of land within the Tunbridge Wells Borough, 
within the parish of Bidborough.     

 
 

 
2. INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
1. Following the very significant and damaging flooding events that took place in 

2013/14, considerable work has been undertaken by the Environment Agency, 
in partnership with other bodies/stakeholders to pursue robust flood mitigation 
solutions for the future.  Tunbridge Wells Borough Council has been involved in 
the Medway Flood Partnership, which has secured funding through the Local 
Growth Fund Round 3 grant funding via the South East Local Enterprise 
Partnership.   

 
2. The Environment Agency has made considerable progress towards the 

implementation of the Leigh Expansion and Hildenborough Embankment 
Scheme, which will increase the capacity of the Flood Storage Area and reduce 
the risk to a greater number of homes and businesses in Tonbridge and 
Hildenborough.  However, in order to deliver the scheme, an amendment to the 
River Medway (Flood Relief) Act 1976 is required. 

 

The River Medway (Flood Relief) Act 1976 
 

3. Under the River Medway (Flood Relief) Act 1976 sits a short document known 
as the ‘Scheme’ which sets the maximum level to which water can be stored.  
Under the Scheme, the Environment Agency can store water to 28.05m Above 
Ordnance Datum Newlyn (AODN).  This means above mean sea level at 
Newlyn, Cornwall, which is used as the benchmark for Great Britain. 
 

4. At the time of original construction of the Flood Storage Area (FSA), landowners 
who owned land within the boundary of the FSA were paid a single 
compensation payment, and the area affected by the FSA was described in the 

Page 21

Agenda Item 7



 

land registry deeds for the property.  This noted that the area within the 
boundary could be flooded to any depth and for any duration required. 

 

5. In order to reduce the risk to more homes and businesses, the Environment 
Agency are planning to increase the stored water level to 28.6m AODN 
(increasing the capacity of the FSA by 24%), and as such this will require an 
amendment to the maximum water level set out in the Act. 

 

6. In order to achieve this amendment, the Environment Agency are required to 
undertake a number of key stages; 

 

o Contact key organisations as described in the Act, all landowners within 
the current flood storage area and anyone who will be brought into the 
flood storage area through its expansion to explain the proposals and seek 
their views.  Where required, meetings will be arranged to discuss and 
answer any questions.  The Environment Agency has met with senior 
officers of Tunbridge Wells Borough Council in Planning Services: at this 
meeting Officers emphasised to the Environment Agency the need to 
consult with Bidborough Parish Council and landowners.   
 

o Before submitting a proposed amended ‘Scheme’ to the Ministry of 
Environment, Food and Rural Affairs for approval, the Environment Agency 
will supply a copy of it to those described above and notify them of the date 
on which they plan to submit to the Ministry for approval.  The Environment 
Agency will then write to the Ministry with the proposal. 

 

o The Ministry will refrain from making a decision for one month. If in that 
time there are no objections, the Ministry can take a decision on whether to 
approve the ‘Scheme’.  If there are objections which cannot be resolved, 
an Inquiry or Hearing will be held to review the evidence and make a 
recommendation to the Minister, who will then make the decision. 

 

7. The Environment Agency has informed the Ministry of their intent to submit a 
revised scheme and are consulting with specified interests in 2019 with a view 
to submitting the revised scheme later this year/early 2020. 
 

8. The Environment Agency has also confirmed that with regard to the impact of 
the expansion on areas downstream,  expanding the FSA will allow more water 
to be stored upstream which will reduce the likelihood of flooding downstream. 
The operating procedures will stay the same so downstream communities will 
not see a change in how the FSA functions. The Environment Agency models 
the impact of proposed schemes and cannot progress with any works that will 
increase flood risk to others. This scheme has passed that assessment. 
 

9. A briefing note has been prepared by the Environment Agency and is attached 
at Appendix A. 

 

10. A map showing the area affected is attached at Appendix B. 
 

 

 

Page 22

Agenda Item 7



 

3. AVAILABLE OPTIONS 
 
Option 1: Support the amendment proposed by the Environment Agency to the River 
Medway (Flood Relief) Act 1976 that is required in order to deliver the Leigh 
Expansion and Hildenborough Embankment Scheme. 
 
1. As summarised in this report, the proposed amendments to the River Medway 

(Flood Relief Act) Act 1976 required in order to deliver the above scheme, will 
enable the increased storage of flood water in order to reduce the risk to more 
homes and businesses in the neighbouring authority of Tonbridge and Malling, 
in particular for homes in Tonbridge and Hildenborough.  
 

Option 2: Do not support the amendment proposed by the Environment Agency to 
the River Medway (Flood Relief) Act 1976 that is required in order to deliver the 
Leigh Expansion and Hildenborough Embankment Scheme. 
 
2. As, above, the Environment Agency has carried out considerable work to bring 

forward the proposals for the amended scheme in partnership with Tonbridge 
and Malling Borough Council and other stakeholders and funding arrangements 
are in place to fund the scheme.   
 

 

 
4. PREFERRED OPTION AND REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
1. The preferred option is Option 1: that Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

supports the proposed amendment to the River Medway (Flood Relief) Act 1976 
in order to deliver the Leigh Expansion and Hildenborough Embankment 
Scheme as set out in the above report. 
 

2. To not support the amendment to the Act at this time would jeopardise the 
scheme being delivered by the Environment Agency in a timely way and may 
have implications for the current funding position.  Ultimately, it may have 
implications for the delivery of flood storage measures, and the flood risk to 
neighbouring settlements.   
 

 

 
5. CONSULTATION RESULTS AND PREVIOUS COMMITTEE FEEDBACK 
 
1. As referred to above, the Environment Agency is carrying out consultation with 

affected bodies including Tunbridge Wells Borough Council and Bidborough 
Parish Council.  

 
 

 
6. NEXT STEPS: COMMUNICATION AND IMPLEMENTATION OF THE 

DECISION 
 
6.1 This report will be taken to the Council’s Cabinet meeting on 5 December 2019. 

 

Page 23

Agenda Item 7



 

 
7 CROSS-CUTTING ISSUES AND IMPLICATIONS  
 

Issue Implications Sign-off 

Legal including 
Human Rights 
Act 

There are no legal implications to the 
Council as a result of the proposals.  

Jo Smith 

Lawyer 
(Planning) 

Mid Kent Legal 
Services 

Finance and 
other resources 

There are no financial implications to the 
Council of the proposals contained within 
the report. 

Sharon Evans 

Principal 
Planning Policy 
Officer 

31 October 2019 

Staffing 
establishment 

There are no staffing implications as a result 
of the proposals. 

Sharon Evans 

Principal 
Planning Policy 
Officer 

31 October 2019 

Risk 
Management   

There are no implications to the Borough 
Council in terms of risk management.  The 
Environment Agency is responsible for the 
delivery of the proposals (in partnership with 
Tonbridge and Malling Borough Council) 
and has ensured that the relevant risk 
management measures are in place. 

Sharon Evans 

Principal 
Planning Policy 
Officer 

31 October 2019 

Data Protection There are no data protection implications 
identified as a result of the proposals. 

Ingrid Weatherup 

Corporate 
Governance 
Officer 

31 October 2019 

Environment  
and 
Sustainability 

The proposals are being put forward by the 
Environment Agency, in part to ensure 
resilience to future climate change impacts 
and possible impacts on flood risk.   
 
The Environment Agency as the statutory 
body will oversee the proposals and ensure 
that no adverse impacts will result to the 
environment as a result of the proposals. 

Sharon Evans 

Principal 
Planning Policy 
Officer 

31 October 2019 

Community 
Safety 

 

The proposals will help to ensure that the 
risk of flooding is reduced in the 
neighbouring borough of Tonbridge and 
Malling.   

Sharon Evans 

Principal 
Planning Policy 
Officer 

31 October 2019 

 

Page 24

Agenda Item 7



 

Health and 
Safety 

The proposals will help to ensure that the 
risk of flooding is reduced in the 
neighbouring borough of Tonbridge and 
Malling.   

Sharon Evans 

Principal 
Planning Policy 
Officer 

31 October 2019 

Health and 
Wellbeing 

The proposals will help to ensure that the 
risk of flooding is reduced in the 
neighbouring borough of Tonbridge and 
Malling.   

Sharon Evans 

Principal 
Planning Policy 
Officer 

31 October 2019 

Equalities There are no equalities impacts as a result 
of the proposals. 

Ingrid Weatherup 

Corporate 
Governance 
Officer 

31 October 2019 

 
 

8 REPORT APPENDICES 
 
The following documents are to be published with and form part of the report: 

 Appendix A: Environment Agency Briefing Note on Leigh Expansion and 
Hildenborough embankment scheme 

 Appendix B: Map of affected area 

 
 
 

Page 25

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Leigh expansion and Hildenborough 
embankment scheme 
Consultation on an amendment to the River Medway (Flood 
Relief) Act 1976 
 

Summary 
The Environment Agency is consulting on a proposed change to the stored water level in 
the Leigh Flood Storage Area which is governed by the Medway (Flood Relief) Act 1976 
(MFRA). Increasing the capacity of the storage area will reduce flood risk to a further 230 
homes, more than 1,400 in total. 
A Scheme appended to the MFRA details (amongst other information) the maximum 
impoundment level within the Leigh Flood Storage area, currently 28.05m AODN. The 
Environment Agency manage and operate the Leigh Flood Storage Area within the 
parameters of the Scheme.  
The Environment Agency are leading a partnership project to increase the capacity of the 
Leigh Flood Storage Area by raising the maximum impoundment level to 28.60m AODN.  
The Environment Agency are consulting landowners and organisations on the proposed 
changes to the Scheme prior to the submission of a revised Scheme to Defra and the 
Minister for approval. 

 
Background 
In 1982, the then-Southern Water Authority finished constructing the Leigh Flood Storage 
Area (FSA) to reduce the risk of flooding to approximately 1,200 homes and businesses in 
Tonbridge and Hildenborough. The FSA works to store the peak of a flood upstream and 
release it in a controlled manner once the peak has passed. 
Climate change will increase the risk of flooding in the coming years so the Environment 
Agency is working with Kent County Council and Tonbridge and Malling Borough Council 
on a project to increase the capacity of the Leigh FSA to reduce the risk to more homes 
and businesses in Tonbridge and Hildenborough.  

 
The River Medway (Flood Relief) Act 1976 
The operation of the existing FSA is governed by the River Medway (Flood Relief) Act 
1976. Under this Act sits a short document known as the ‘Scheme’ which sets out the 
maximum level to which water can be stored. Under the Scheme, the Environment Agency 
can store water to 28.05m Above Ordnance Datum Newlyn (AODN) as measured at the 
structure. This means above mean sea level at Newlyn, Cornwall, which is used as the 
benchmark for Great Britain. 
At the time of construction, landowners who owned land within the boundary of the FSA 
were paid a single compensation payment, and the area affected by the FSA was 

customer service line  03708 506 506  floodline 03459 88 11 88 
incident hotline   0800 80 70 60   Page 1 of 2 Page 27

Appendix A



 
described in the land registry deeds for the property. This noted that the area within the 
boundary could be flooded to any depth and for any duration required. 
In order to reduce the risk to more homes and businesses, the Environment Agency are 
planning to increase the stored water level to 28.6m AODN as measured at the control 
structure. This will increase the capacity by 24%, and will require an amendment to the 
maximum water level set out in the scheme. 
In order to achieve this amendment, the Environment Agency are required to undertaken a 
number of key stages: 
• Contact key organisations as described in the Act, all landowners within the current 

flood storage area and anyone who will be brought into the flood storage area through 
its expansion to explain the proposals and seek their views. Where required, meetings 
will be arranged to discuss and answer any questions. 

• Before submitting a proposed amended ‘scheme’ to the Minister, the Environment 
Agency will supply a copy of it to those described above and notify them of the date on 
which they plan to submit to the Minister for approval. The Environment Agency will 
then write to the Minister with the proposal. 

• The Minister will then refrain from making a decision for one month. If in that time there 
are no objections, the Minister can then take a decision on whether to approve the 
‘scheme’. If there are objections which cannot be resolved, an Inquiry or Hearing will be 
held to review the evidence and make a recommendation to the Minister, who will then 
make their decision. 

The Environment Agency have informed Defra of their intent to submit a revised Scheme 
and are consulting with specified interests in 2019 with a view to submitting the revised 
scheme later this year. 

 
Implications 
Although the FSA is being expanded, due to the landscape, most of the extra capacity will 
be gained closest to the control structure where we will store water up to 55cm deeper 
than now. Approximately 16.4 hectares of extra land around the edge of the flood storage 
area will be needed as part of the expanded scheme but this will allow the FSA to hold 
24% more water. 
The agreements to flood land within the existing FSA remain unchanged and no further 
compensation is due as the original compensation was made for the lifetime of the FSA. 
Any land outside of the current FSA boundary (as stipulated within the Act) but which is 
brought into the FSA as a result of the expansion may be eligible for compensation for any 
damage. This can be discussed in more detail at meetings with landowners. 
The Environment Agency are keen to work with landowners and organisations impacted 
by this change to understand any concerns as early as possible. As a result, the 
Environment Agency are consulting all affected landowners and organisations on the 
proposed changes to the Scheme prior to the submission of a revised Scheme to Defra 
and the Minister for approval. 

 

Autumn 2019 

customer service line  03708 506 506  floodline 03459 88 11 88 
incident hotline   0800 80 70 60   Page 2 of 2 Page 28

Appendix A



MP 39.0

Tr
ac
k

Pinfa rth ings

Raya k

42.7m

Outf ield

Price's Wood

Fairlaw ns

50.4m

PE
NS
HU
R S
T 
R O
AD

2

The Bun galow

3

Hol ly  Lo dge

West  Lo dge

Cott age s

Pant ile s

Light foo ts1

Price 's  Wo od
44.8m 1

Ceda r C ourt

Hous e

Ardu ll ie

43.3m

Tinba ly ghe

SP

Wych woo d

Fyldon

Kera ng

Briar woo d

MP 39.25

46.9m

Cott age

Hoat h

Tr
ac
k

Blackhoath Wood

MP 38.75

Track

Issues

2

Cott age

46.1m

Tr
ac
k

B 2027

Bla ckh oath

The

CIND ER H ILL  LAN E

Cinder

Pond

Cinde r Hi ll Far m

Roundabout Wood

Cott age

60.7m

Whit e

Hill

Issues

Foxw old

47.5m

and
Bat

Bal l

Crick et Gr ound

The Gr een

Leigh  (Station)

Leigh

View

PO

Primary School

Park

LB

Tank

Allotme nt Ga rdens

Old
Lodg e

Track

Track

Mast

Shelter

The

10c

10a

8

Hall
West

Cott age

46

1

Cott age s

MP 39.75

Chil li ng

Sewage Works

Hous e

Cot
tag

es

Cha
rlo

tte
s

31a

43

39

31
26

1

Buria l

Pump  Co ttag e

1

Whee lw righ ts

Surg ery

Park  Vie w

1

The Cot tage

10

Club

10a

Wate rwo rks
Hous e

2

Cot tag
es

Whit e

Cott age

Grou nd

Inst itut e Co tt

Hil l

Whit e Ho use

11

Fleu r d
e Lis

Park

47

Ston e

9

The

Hous e

HIGH
 STR

EET
The Squ are

Wate rwo rks

The

Crof t

Cott age

Bung alows

2

3

Hous e

Cott

WELL  CL OSE

Surg ery

16

Chur ch

9

14

Collin s

5

12

38

32

22

Pond

Drain

Seft on

Wind fal ls

PENS
HUR

ST R
OAD

Buck hur st

Cher iton
Little Bra dbou rne

Kiltair n

View
Haze ld ene

Birch den e

Rook ery

Oakd ene

Briar way s

Garage

49

Rapp are e

B 2027

Pond

41

31

Pond

Dra
in

Pond

Hous e

7
8

1

1

28

Pol ice

19

Cott a
ge

27

1

33.5m

1

1

6

Forg e S quar e

View

El

Hous
e

Cott age

CR
AN

DA
L L

S

Bel l

Sub Sta

1

The 
Coac

h

For ge Ho use

21

AV
EN

UE

Leigh

Cherry  T ree

10

TH
E 

GR
E E

N 
L A

NE

5

CLOS E

MEA
D OW

 BA
N K

10

House

5

11

Cot tag es

Eli zab
e ths

12

Wild H
atch

Pippi ns

12

Sub Sta

20

7

2

8

Bung alow

Grea t B rook s

4

22

9

GP

2

War Memorial

9

The

CHUR CH HILL

7

LB

WYND HAM

WY
ND
HA
M

Forg e

El

Sout h

3

13

8

Orchard

7

1

Drain

Ches tnu ts

Br
ick

ma
ke
r s

Bomb ers  Cot tag eEl Sub  Sta

KILN  LAN E

5

Che rry

3

1

29.7m

WOOD

Rose  Co ttag e

Old  Ba kery

Pond

2

Elv anin

Spring

LO
WE

R 
G R

EE
N

9 
to

 1
2

Ranm ore
Tre e

SAXBY

Sand alwood

Oast

Hous e
Cott

1

Hous e

Hou se

Cott age

GP

Oak

EN
SF
IEL

D  
RO
AD

Budg eon s

Bung alows

The Rise

Drain

Sear wel l

Paul's Farm

1

Ivyd ale

Paul 's F arm

2

Brad bou rne

Oak Cot tage s

Ensleig h

Paul's Farm

Pond

DONK EY

Garage

The Bun galow

The

Old

Domic il lo

The

1

5 
to

 8

The

MP 39.5

2

9

Sout hme ad

1

(P
H)

Bridg e

3

1

6

Fle
ur
 d

e 
L i
s

Paul's Farm

Engin eer s C otta ge

Barn

4

FIEL D

Firs

LB

TCB

MP 40.0

Track

Ely

Cott age
Oak Tre e

Lod ge

1
5

9
13

Topf ield C otta ge

Recrea tion  Grou nd

Track

Track

Track

Ponds
Moat

Drain

31.7m

SL

Cott age

Ne
th

er
f i
el
d

MP 40.25

Co
om

be

POWD ER MILL  LA NE

32.6m

Drain

Barn ett s

Home la nds

Moat

Lo
w 

Cr
o f

t

The Gre at B arnCo
ol
-n

a-

Oakf ield F arm

Mead

Farm

Ke
ep

er
s

Fa
ir 

Ac
r e

s

Farm

Fi
rs

Moat Farmhouse

Moat

Pond

Barn ett s

Fund inde lv e

Grea t

Cr
ei
n
e

Barn

32.3m

Hol lo wtr ees

Barn ett s

Drain

Pennywinkle Shaw

Little

MP 40.5

Little Barnetts Farm

Pond

Oniva l

1

Farm  Co ttag e

Cott age

Bayt ree

Hil lcr est

Sta

Alf rist on
End

6

Gales

Lodg e

Fairlaw n

Cott age

LEAL AN
D S

Lant ern  Cro ft

Court

22

22

Cott age

Timbe r T ops

Copp ins

Cott age

Bard en

16Home le a

Rose woo d

Bywa ys

Ambles ide

Howlet ts

Gree n W ays

The Cot tage

2

Sprin gfie ld

Cott age s

Gree nfie ld

20

Cott age

Old  Wo od

Corn erw ays

Tennis

El

AVEN UE

Oak

Edge  H
il l

15

12

Old

4

Cottages

10

Hawt hor ns

16
21

4

Ross ly n

1

HO
LL

OW
 T

RE
ES

 D
RI
V
E

17

Old  Ch imne ys

1

Garden

30.8m

The

The

Medlar s

The Bun galows

Wood  Va le

Hol lo ws

Inglen ook

3

1

1

Beec hes

Gowe rs

3BARNETT S RO AD

Old  Sc hool H ous e

2

Oak

Ponds

Hedg ero ws

Sub

Arth red a

12a

12

16
b

14

12c

16
a

16

Farm
Gran ary
Moat

6

3

Wood

The Vica rag e

Pavil io n

GREE N V
IEW

 AVE NUE

5
The Old Da iry

Pippi n Co tta ge

3

End

The Oak s

FB

1

Tra
ck

47.8m
GP

47.5m

SL

River Medway

MP 41.0

Viaduct

Path (um)

Weirs

Pond

Dam

Track

Tr
ac
k

Drain

TONBRIDG E BY- PASS

CR

Manor Farm

MP 40.75

FB

34.7m

Depot

Cott age
Mano r

Path (um)

A 21

Medw ay Hous e

Mano r B uilding s

CP & ED Bdy

De
f

COCR

Tk RDef

Ramh urs t Lo dge

Loug hrig g

Path
 (um

)

FB

Track

FB

FB

FB

32.5m

FB

Pa
th
 (
um
)

Mead ow Bung alow

34.2m

POW
D ER

 MI
LL  

LA N
E

Court
Tennis

Dr
ain

Track

The Pum p Ho use

Wate rwo rks

Pa
th
 (
um
)

Cott age

Fost ers  Bar n

The Oas t Ho use

Upper Hayesden

Path (um)

Ford

Drain

Path (um)

The Gra nary

Pond

Track

Drain

The Bar n

The Oas t Cott age
Ches tnu t

Pond

09.1m 
RH

0.91m RH

Def

Und

Pond

50.8m

Track

LOWE R H AYS DEN LAN E

Wind y Ri dge

Mulber ry C ott age

New Plantation

GP

HA
YE

SD
E N

 L
A N

E

The Bar n

Cott s

Drain

GA
TE

 F
A R

M 
R O

AD

42.4m

45.1m

Home  Fa rm

Path (um)

Fosters Farm

Great Hayesden

Settling

52.5m

Tanks

Fost ers
Farm

1

Farm

3

Tal ly  Ho

Pa
th
 (u

m)

Judd s F arm

The Hay barn

UPP
E R 

H AY
SD E

N L
ANE

Co C
onst

, CP
 and

 ED 
Bdy

The Phe sant ry

Track

Path

GP

Track

Tr
ac
k

Judd's Wood

HA
YE

SD
E N

 L
A N

E

46.7m

Hil lri se

56.3m

84.0m

Dr
ain

Tr
ac
k

Hays den  Far m

Track

Path (um)

Track

Path (um)

56.8m

3

41. 1m

1

ENSF IELD  RO AD

37.1m

Ensfield Farm Cottages

Und
Co C

onst
, CP

 and
 ED 

Bdy

Tra
ck

SD

Dairy  Co tta ge

Track

The Cot tage

UndWard Bdy

Pond

Track

Riv
er

Me
dw

ay

Ponds

Tr
ac
k

Pond

Tapner's Wood

Ashour  Farm

Tr
ac
k

Tr
ac
k

Track

Track

Tr
ac
k

Track

Tapn ers

Und

Merr y

Chalybeate

Spring

The

Kill ick's

Cott age

Kil lic k'sBank

Wind s

Spring

Coom be Bank

Bank

Tr
ac
k

Old  Fa rmho us
e

Co Const, CP 
and ED Bdy

Tapner's

Dr
ain

Path (um)

Hole

CR

River Medway

Maze

Tra
ck

29.0m

Lake 29.9m

Lake

Willow Bed

Track

Barn
Farm

Drain

Pla ce

Drain

Drain

3

Well

60.4m

Cottag es

Pa
th
 (
um
)

Pond

Pond

Pond

58.5m

Well Place  Farm

Co Const, CP and ED Bdy

Place

41

Pond
Pond

Farm

Track

Drain

Drain

30.3m

Dr
ain

Ponds

Well

59.9m

42.1m

Track

Pond

Ward Bdy

Und

Und

Pond

Track

Track

Issues

Rive
r M

edw
ay

Track

Spring

FB

Track

Path (um)

ENSF IELD

Drain

Drain

Drain

ROAD

Drain

Dr
ain

32.6m

Ensfield Bridge

Track

Pond

Track

Drain

Drain

Tra
ck

Grid

Pat
h (

um)

Dr
ain

26.6m

Issues

Track

Cattle

Paul 's H ill H ouse

Alders Cottage

Issues

Rough Ten Acres

27.0m

40.5m

30.5m

Sinks

Haysden Country Park

Pat
h (

um)

Viaduct

Drain

Tr
ac
k

Car
Park

Path (um)

Path (um)

Pond

Drain

Trac
k

Haysden Water

0.91m RH

2

24.5m

1

25.6m

32.6m

24.3m

Grea t H aysd en
Cott age s

Dra
in

LO
WE

R 
H A

YS
DE

N 
LA

N E

Drain

Slipway

Und

Co Const, CP and ED Bdy

Path (um)

23.7m

Dra
in

Drain

Dra
in

Pond

TONB RIDG E B Y-PA SS

Pond

Track

Char tfie ld

Path (u
m)

FB

Path 
(um)

Lower Haysden

Straight
 Mile

23.7m

FB

FB

Track

Track
Track

Well

Spring

Pond

Ingleby Tol l

Mart
in's 

Driv
e

Track

Path (um)

Track

Rookery Wood

Path (um)

Track

Track

Park  Fa rm

Pond

Tra
ck

Rough Ten Acres

Track

Path (um)

72.5m

PENS HUR ST
 R OAD

Pond

Pond

Pa
th
 (u

m)

Pond

Pond

Pond

Track

Cott age s

4

Pond

Track

Cinde r H ill

LB

Tra
ck

6

Park Plantation

69.8m

Well
Bloomery

Trac
k

Pond

(site  of )

Pond

Pond

Track
Cott age s

3
1

64.6m

Cinde r H ill

Pond

Pond

Pond

Riv
er
 M
ed
wa
y

Path
 (um

)

Fords

Dr
ain

Tra
ck

Drain

Path (um)

Path

Path (um
)

FB

Def

CP
 &
 E
D 
Bd
y

SD
0.91m RH

0.9
1m
 R
H

Def

FF

0.9
1m
 R
H

Dr
ain

Pond

Drain

Drain

Pond

Lake

Un
d

0.91m RH

Path (um)

Path
 (um

)

FB

Drain

Straight
 Mile

FB

Drain

Pa
th
 (u

m)

Drain

Drain

Pit

Pond

Drain

Pat
h (

um)

Pond

Pond

Drain

Slurry

Drain

Pond

Path (um)

Pond

Weir

36.9m

Pond

FB

Spring

Drain

Drain

Ensfield

Pond

Pond

Rive
r M

edw
ay

River Medway

Pond

Elli
ott

s Y
ar
d

5

1

8

10

Tanks

Penshu rst

Track

Sewage Works

Centre
Enterp rise

Elliot ts Co ttage s

FarmElliot t's

2
1

Un
d

Pond

CP &
 ED 

Bdy
Co C

onst
,

CR

Pond

FB

Dra
in

GATE FARM ROAD

Pond

Drain

Pond

Pond

Broadf ieldPond

Pond

Drain

Issues

FB

Little Judd's Wood

8

Drain

30.3m

Bridg e H ous e

The Yew s

ROGU ES HILL

Pond

Drain

Tr
ac
k

Home F arm

Path (um)

Drain

Hawk's Wood

Drain

Judd's Wood

Tr
ac
k

LA
NE

HA
YE

SD
E N

95.3m

Judd W ood  Farm

Pond

Riv
er
 M
ed
wa
y

Trac
kWeir

Track

Co
 C
on
st
, 
CP
 a
nd
 E
D 
Bd
y

CR

Drain

Ashour Wood

Tr
ac
k

Doub le ton Oas t H ouse

Path (um)

Drain

Track

Ponds

Doub le ton

Clappers Shaw

Cott age

Penshurst Park

Pavil ion

Cricket Ground

Trac
k

Pa
th
 (
um
)

Tra
ck

Track

2

Zerm att

Beec h G lad e

Moat  Co ttag e

Path
 (um)

B 
21

76

Path

41. 1m

Lodg e

1

The Lof t Ho use

Rand al ls

Barn F arm

Lodg e

Hamm ert ower

Hamm erf ield Co tta ge

5

39.9m

2

Redw ood

Pond

The Old Or cha rd

57.9m

1

Cott age s

66.8m

Park Pale

Pond

Bung alow

Moat Cottages

64.0m

The Moat

DOUB LET ON L ANE

Track

Pond

6

Culver s Hi ll

Nort h

Culver  Lod ge

Stea mha mmer

PENS HUR ST R OAD

Hamm erf ield

Eden  Vie w

48.2m

42.1m

Beggar s'

Lilac C ott age

The Old La und ry

Pond

Orch ard  Cot tag e

Culver  Hou se

Pond

Doubleton Farm House

ChestnutPlantation

Bear 's  Oak

Lancup  We ll

Pond

The Gar dens

The Ro okery

(Lak e)

Track

Pat
h (

um)

FBPath (um)

Path (um)

Path (um)

Tennis Court

The

FORDCOM BE R OAD

GP
31. 0m

Finch es

Lodg e

Dr
ain

Drain

29.9m

New Cot tage

GROV E R OAD

Cott age

Farm
South Park

33.6m

Sout h P ark

Stab le s

Sout h P ark

TC
B

Sout h P ark

Gray le as
LB

Neth erw ood

GP
Shelter

36.8m

Dr
ain

Dra
in

Farm

Drain

Pond

Ford P lace

Playing Field

Tr
ac
k

Pat
h (

um)

Track

Path
 (um

)

Drain

Track

Spring

FB
Dairy  Co tta ge

52.9m

Deep  We ll

POUN DSB RIDG E LA NE

Pond

Orch ard  Cot tag e

63.9m

Oaklan ds

Path 
(um)

0.91m RH

Court

Pa
th
 (
um
)

Meadow Wood

Tennis
Pond

Pavilion

Sewage Works

2

2

Ston e C o
tta ges

Cott age
Swale

The Ring  Tim e

Path (um)Ivy Cott age

Brick  Co tta ges

Gard en Cott age

Old Swaylands

Path (um)

1

Swaylands School Farm

1

Pond

Wood gate Manor

1 t o 11

Und

Def

0.91m RH

Co Const, CP & ED Bdy

54.3m

MS
36.0m

(def )

Pond

RiverEden

Grov e C otta ge

TheGrov e

Pond

Pond

Track

Pond

Track

Drain

Track

Birch Wood

Pa
th
 (
um
)

Pa
th
 (
um
)

Pond

Barden

Dell
Barden

47.2m

Pond

Cottag e

Broc khil l
Pond

Pond

Pete rsc ot

Pete rsb ank

Pond

Lodg e

Mead ow
Wood

PENS HUR ST R OAD

Reserv oir (c overe d)

PENS H
UR ST 

R OAD

B 21 76

Tennis Court

Ambe rley

3

Rogu es Hil l

1 t
o 

6

54.9m

4

Almshouses

1

Cott age s

The Qua rry

ROGU ES HILL

Quar ry

Rogu es Hil l Hous e

48.9m
Lodg e

1

Rogu es Hil l

Rogu es Hous e

Cott age s

El Sub  Sta

Drummo nd Ha ll

1 t o 10

Und

RH
FF

35.0m

Hol ly

2

The Ret reat1

Hous e

Bank
Lilac C ott age

Clo
ck
h o
us
e

1 t
o 
6

Me
ws

Und
Pond

73.0m

Birch  Co tta ge

Marlpit CornerMarlpit  Co tt

GP

Yew Tre e

Pond

Ashour Wood

The Old Fo rge

Cott age

Tyhu rst

87.4m

Pond

Swayla nds

73.3m

Quarry  Hous e

Rose  Co ttag e

The Lod ge

Co
 C
on
st
, 
CP
 &
 E
D 
Bd

y

Riv
er
 M
ed
wa
y

(ai
d e
d)
 P
rim
a r
y  
Sc
ho
ol

En
g l
an
d 
(v
o l
un
ta
ry
)

FB

B2
18
8

St John the

The Leic est er

Church

Arms  Ho tel

Baptist's

HIG
H  
ST
R E
ET

Pe
n s
hu
rs
t 
C h
u r
ch
 o
f

29.9m

Pond

39.9m

8

River side

Path (um)

19

5

4

El Sub Sta

36.7m

Peeler s Ho use

Kimbe rley

Birch es

4

17

1

3

Telephone Exchange

Kinta il
LB

The Glebe

4

Track

Rive
r E

den

Star

Allot men t Ga rde ns

FO
RD

CO
M B

E 
R O

AD

Long Bridge

20

B 21 88

Co
u r
ty
ar
d 
H o
u s
e

GLEB ELA
NDS

18

7

BECK ETS  FIE LD

Riv
er

vie
w

Petr e's Fi eld

12

9

6

Drain

Oak Hou se

30.5m

Penshurst
Forg e

Redc ot

THE WAR REN

Mead s

33.4m

1 t o 10

5

Thimb le  Ha ll Co tta ge

Cott age

Wy
ch

wo
o dCo
pp

er
s

Clo se

Latt erh ams

So
ut

hd
o w

n

Hous e

Drain

1

7

16

Drain

Gard en Cott age

Drain

The App le Sto re

11

10

Oakley  Hou se

1

30.5m

7
8

Eden  Co ttag e

1

Weir

Dra
in

6

30.5m

Warr en Far m

Wa
rre

n C
ot
tag

es

Warr en Far m Co tta ge

Pond

River Eden

Well

Tr
ac
k

1

Pond

Squa
re

3

ROGU ES HILL

Leic
e st

e r

Dr
ain

Drain

2

The Gat e Ho use

Pond

SD

Rect ory  Cot tag es 30.3m

Gard en Cott age

3

The Rec tory

Village Hall

Sagit awa h H ouse

34.8m Bux ton  H ous e

TCB
PO

Shelte r

Higso ns

Path (um)

The Old Re cto ry

Penshu rst P lace

Path (um)

11

Hou se

PCs

LA
TY

ME
R S

Court

Leice st er

Sub Sta

Colquh ouns  Co tta geKeymer

Qua in tw ays

Flat

El

Hous e

1

El Sub Sta

Colquh ouns

Cors ewa ll

For ge Co tta ge

Sta ble

Long for d

4

1

Laty mer s Lo dge

1

The Cot tage

Surg ery

Fir T ree

Vil lag e H ou se

Pond

Eden

Path
 (um

)

Rive
r

30.5m

Dr
ain

The W arre n

Dra
in

Dr
ain

Farm
Warr en

Barn

PENS HUR ST R OAD

PENS
HUR S

T R O
AD

Track

Path (um)

Realm Park

78.9m

Print stile Place

98.4m

Asho ur Lodg e

99.9m

90.8m

85.0m

Pond

Pond

Clock House Farm

103 .4m

Print stile Lod ge

BA
RD

EN
 R

OA
D

Friar s O ak

Printstile

Track

Dr
ain

Stab le  Cot tag es
The Clock Hou se

Track

Birch WoodPond

86.7m

LB

Pond

Pond

97.2m

Drain

2 1

97.3m

Petersbank

Pond

Pond

Pond

Pond

Pond

Cottages

Cott
Print stile

Tonbridge
and Malling

Borough
Council

Sevenoaks
District
Council

Tunbridge
Wells

Borough
Council

Site Plan

Dr
aw

ing
 Lo

ca
tio

n: 
C:

\U
se

rs\
PH

ILR
EE

S\D
alc

ou
r M

ac
lar

en
\Le

igh
 Ex

pa
ns

ion
 & 

Hi
lde

nb
oro

ug
h E

mb
an

k. 
- G

eo
ma

tic
s\0

1 D
M 

Pla
ns

\20
19

10
03

_1
73

05
4_

PL
N_

IN
FO

_9
7.1

_L
A.

mx
d

Scheme Name:

Coordinate System: British National Grid
Projection: Transverse Mercator
Datum: OSGB 1936

DateRev
-

Drawing No:

Drawing Name:

Coords: 554,251  144,600

Signed:

Location:

The information contained in this document is confidential and
protected by copyright. The use, copying or disclosure to a third party,
either wholly or in part, except with the written permission of, and in
the manner prescribed by Environment Agency constitutes an
infringement of copyright. Dalcour Maclaren does not warrant that this
document is definitive nor free of error and does not accept liability for
any loss caused or arising from reliance upon information provided
herein. Although our best efforts have been made to ensure the
accuracy of these plans, all measurements must be confirmed on site.
BASED UPON THE ORDNANCE SURVEY MAP WITH THE
SANCTION OF THE CONTROLLER OF H.M STATIONERY OFFICE.
CROWN COPYRIGHT RESERVED. (c) OS LICENCE No. 100024198

Drawn:
Approved:

Sheet No:
Sheet Size:

1 of 1
A2

JY
PR

Description

First Issue

River Medway, Penshurst to Leigh, Kent.

Leigh FSA & Hildenborough Embankment

Local Authority Boundaries Information
Plan

173054_PLN_INFO_97.1

Notes

Date:

Key:
Local Authority Boundary

Current extent of flooding with
impounding at 28.05m Above
Ordnance Datum
Modelled extent of flood outline if
impounded level increases to
28.60m Above Ordnance Datum

Scale: 1:10,0000 900 1,800 2,700 3,600 4,500450 Metres

Leigh (Station)

Tank

Mast

MP 39.75

Sewage Works

10 10a 119

16

14

12

Drain

Drain

1

House

Cottage

Drain

Ivydale

Paul's Farm

Ensleigh

Pond

Bridge

Inset Plan 1 0 90 18045 Metres

Upstream extent of modelled risk of
flooding under three Leigh Flood Storage
Area operational scenarios

Bridge House

The Yews

ROGUES HILL

35.0m

Holly

The Retreat

House

Bank

B2
188

The LeicesterArms Hotel

HIG
H 
ST
RE
ET

3

ROGUES HILL

Rectory Cottages 30.3m

Sagitawah House

34.8m Buxton House

Court
Sub Sta

Colquhouns CottageKeymer

Quaintways

El

Colquhouns

Corsewall

Forge Cottage

Longford

4

1

Latymers Lodge

1

The Cottage

Surgery

Village House

0 130 26065 MetresInset Plan 2 1:2,500Scale:

1:2,500Scale:

04.10.2019

P
age 29

A
ppendix B



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

Planning and Transportation 
Cabinet Advisory Board 

11 November 2019 

 

Urgent Business 
 

Procedural Item: 
 

To consider any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent, for the reasons to 
be stated, in accordance with Section 100B(4) of the Local Government Act 1972. 

 

Page 31

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Planning and Transportation 
Cabinet Advisory Board 

11 November 2019 

 

Date of Next Meeting 
 

Procedural Item: 
 

To note that the date of the next scheduled meeting is Monday 13 January 2020 at 
6.30pm. 

 

Page 33

Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Chairman's Introduction
	2 Apologies
	3 Declarations of Interests
	4 Notification of Visiting Members Wishing to Speak
	5 Minutes of the meeting dated 19 August 2019
	6 Work Programme as at 31 October 2019
	7 Leigh Flood Storage Area Expansion - Consultation on amendment to the River Medway (Flood Relief Act) 1976
	Appendix A
	Leigh expansion and Hildenborough embankment scheme
	Consultation on an amendment to the River Medway (Flood Relief) Act 1976
	Summary
	Background
	The River Medway (Flood Relief) Act 1976
	Implications



	Appendix B

	8 Urgent Business
	9 Date of the Next Meeting

